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 1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
  

 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
  

 3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
  

 4   Committee at Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 3:00 p.m.
  

 5   on December 2, 2025.  All parties appearing via
  

 6   videoconference.
  

 7
   BEFORE:  ADAM STAFFORD, Chairman

 8
  

 9
   APPEARANCES:

10
   For the Applicant:

11
        Albert H. Acken

12        ACKEN LAW
        111 East Dunlap Avenue, Suite 1-172

13        Phoenix, Arizona 85020
  

14   Also Present:
  

15        Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford
        Samuel Davis, Cypress Creek Renewables, LLC

16        Sohini Hathiramani, Cypress Creek Renewables, LLC
        Casey Hensen, Westland Resources

17        Tess Wagner, Westland Resources
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.
  

 2   Now's the time set for the prehearing conference on the
  

 3   application of Cypress Creek Renewables, LLC, for a
  

 4   Certificate of Environmental Compatibility, for the
  

 5   Cactus Flower Solar Gen-Tie Project, Docket Number
  

 6   L-21370A-25-0228-00254, or Line Siting Case 254.
  

 7                 Start with appearances, Mr. Acken.
  

 8                 MR. ACKEN:  Bert Acken on behalf of the
  

 9   applicant, Cypress Creek Renewables, LLC.  With me I have
  

10   Sohini and Samuel from -- on behalf of the applicant, as
  

11   well as Tess and Casey from Westland Resources.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So this one we're doing at
  

13   the Commission, correct?
  

14                 MR. ACKEN:  We are.  Thank you.
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  You've got the lodging
  

16   arranged for the out-of-town committee members?  I think
  

17   that's -- I can think of three of them that would
  

18   probably need lodging.
  

19                 MR. ACKEN:  You know, that was something
  

20   that might have slipped off my radar through the
  

21   holidays, but I have connected Tod with Tess, so we have
  

22   rooms for them, we just have to get them lodging
  

23   confirmations.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I'll touch base with
  

25   them today since I'll see them all later.

      GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535
      www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 254    PREHEARING CONFERENCE      12/02/2025 5

  

 1                 MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I haven't seen -- I have
  

 3   not seen any requests to intervene or any kind of limited
  

 4   appearance statements.
  

 5                 MR. ACKEN:  That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
  

 6   It has been very quiet with respect to potential
  

 7   intervention or public comment or comments to our
  

 8   website, so very quiet.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So the
  

10   applicant agrees that April 22nd, 2026, is the time limit
  

11   for the committee to act in compliance with the statute?
  

12                 MR. ACKEN:  We do.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And has the applicant
  

14   complied with the notice to affected jurisdictions?
  

15                 MR. ACKEN:  We have.  The affected
  

16   jurisdictions are Arizona State Land Department and Pinal
  

17   County, both of whom have received notice directly from
  

18   Commission in accordance with the recommended -- with the
  

19   statutory time frames.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And you've complied
  

21   with the posting and publishing requirements for the
  

22   Notice of Hearing?
  

23                 MR. ACKEN:  We have.  We published three
  

24   signs in the vicinity of the project in the locations
  

25   that we discussed at the prefiling conference.  We have
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 1   published in the Casa Grande Dispatch, on October 30th
  

 2   and November 1st.
  

 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  You said the Casa Grande
  

 4   Dispatch, right?
  

 5                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  

 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And I take it
  

 7   you've had the opportunity to review the agenda.  Are
  

 8   there any objections or issues?
  

 9                 MR. ACKEN:  No objections.  I'd note that I
  

10   think it says that subsequent days we'll start at
  

11   9:00 a.m., and our Notice of Hearing says that if we go
  

12   to Wednesday, we'll start at 10:00.  I don't know if that
  

13   needs a modification, since it's unlikely we're going to
  

14   go to Wednesday anyway, but I just wanted to alert you to
  

15   that.
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Well, I think that was
  

17   deliberate because I thought that Tuesday, if we did a
  

18   tour, we'd start at 9:00, otherwise, we'll start at
  

19   10:00.
  

20                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So we'll start -- without a
  

22   tour, I think we'll be done by Tuesday afternoon, at the
  

23   latest.
  

24                 MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, I think we'll be
  

25   able to get our entire direct case on Monday, since we're
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 1   starting earlier.  And so, yes, I would anticipate
  

 2   Tuesday, without a tour, it will be whatever follow-up,
  

 3   you know, we had to run to ground Monday evening, and
  

 4   then committee questions and deliberations.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And so you've
  

 6   got -- you talked to Commission Staff about -- their AV
  

 7   team about having the broadcast and for having --
  

 8   potentially having members attend remotely?
  

 9                 MR. ACKEN:  I have.  I spoke with Mike
  

10   around the time of the prefiling, and I just sent him an
  

11   email today just to check in.  And as soon as I have
  

12   links and things of that nature, I'll circulate.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, the sooner the
  

14   better, so we can get it out to the members.  Because I
  

15   think a lot of them will probably attend in person.  I'm
  

16   not sure if Member Little will attend in person or if
  

17   she's probably likely to attend remotely, if she's not in
  

18   person.  I think probably members Kryder and Mercer will
  

19   actually come into town for it.  I think everybody else
  

20   pretty much is local.
  

21                 And so you'll have sign-in forms for the
  

22   public comment session?  I guess we'll do that the first
  

23   day at 5:30 is the normal practice?
  

24                 MR. ACKEN:  We will.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you'll have a virtual
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 1   tour, I'm sure, right?
  

 2                 MR. ACKEN:  We do.
  

 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  Now, it
  

 4   will be business casual for the hearing attire.
  

 5                 Now, for the exhibits for the members, will
  

 6   you be doing notebooks or will you have tablets for them?
  

 7                 MR. ACKEN:  We will have tablets.  I hope
  

 8   to circulate the exhibits via email before that -- before
  

 9   the end of the week so that the committee members can
  

10   have them over the weekend as well.  We will have a
  

11   handful of hard copies of exhibits available, obviously
  

12   for you and Robin and anyone else who wants a hard copy,
  

13   but yes, we're going to have tablets as well.
  

14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I guess you don't
  

15   have to exchange exhibits with anyone yet since there's
  

16   no other parties.  How many exhibits do you have?
  

17                 MR. ACKEN:  About eight.  Maybe eight or
  

18   nine, it depends on how many -- if we get any additional
  

19   vacancy correspondence, but somewhere in that range.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So I see you filed
  

21   your witness summaries, the draft CEC, and a proposed
  

22   tour.  Is there a -- is there a public outreach summary
  

23   that I didn't see?
  

24                 MR. ACKEN:  I sent that yesterday
  

25   afternoon.  So I sent three documents in preparation for
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 1   this conference yesterday afternoon, and then tour
  

 2   protocol just a little while ago.  So there's four total
  

 3   prehearing exhibits that I'd like to enter.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

 5                 MR. ACKEN:  But, yes, it includes that
  

 6   public outreach exhibit, the witness summaries, and
  

 7   proposed CEC, the Word version of the CEC, and then the
  

 8   tour protocol.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I got the tour protocol.
  

10   What time did you send that?
  

11                 MR. ACKEN:  Monday at 4:56 were the Word
  

12   version of the proposed CEC and the public outreach
  

13   exhibit.
  

14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I'm not finding
  

15   that.
  

16                 MR. ACKEN:  I don't send those to you
  

17   directly.  I can forward it to you.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Tod, do we have those?
  

19                 MR. BREWER:  Chairman, give me just one
  

20   moment.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So let's identify those.
  

22                 MR. ACKEN:  What I would propose, and
  

23   again, I can forward this, if need be, that we mark the
  

24   filing yesterday, which is the witness summaries, and
  

25   proposed CEC as Prehearing Number 1; the public outreach
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 1   exhibit as Prehearing Number 2; the Word version of the
  

 2   proposed CEC as Prehearing Number 3; and then the tour
  

 3   protocol as Prehearing Number 4.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Those are
  

 5   admitted.
  

 6                 (Exhibits PHC-1 through PHC-4 were admitted
  

 7             into evidence.)
  

 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And those got sent to Robin
  

 9   as well?
  

10                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And I'm going to resend
  

11   them to Tod (inaudible) --
  

12                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, you're breaking
  

13   up, Mr. Acken.
  

14                 MR. ACKEN:  Oh, my apologies.  I don't see
  

15   it.  Maybe it got swept by your --
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I got it.
  

17                 MR. ACKEN:  Let me know if --
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What happened is when I'm
  

19   on the road and I'm using my email through the Outlook
  

20   through the website and not through the link to my office
  

21   computer.  I got the new one that had the latest exhibit.
  

22   I had to scroll down, down, down to see the other ones
  

23   that came in before.  So okay.
  

24                 All right.  Any other things -- any legal
  

25   issues to address?
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 1                 MR. ACKEN:  No, Mr. Chairman.  We are
  

 2   hoping for and expecting a straightforward hearing at
  

 3   this point.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And you've made your
  

 5   financial arrangements with the Commission?
  

 6                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we have.
  

 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And I think the
  

 8   Staff just filed today their response to the letter -- to
  

 9   my letter to them, correct?
  

10                 MR. ACKEN:  Correct.  And we will make that
  

11   a hearing exhibit.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And there's no
  

13   litigation related to this matter, correct?
  

14                 MR. ACKEN:  That's correct.
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  We've got the
  

16   proposed CEC.  Permit status, there's not one for the
  

17   line, but was there one pending for the solar project?
  

18                 MR. ACKEN:  There is.  And I'm going to ask
  

19   Sohini to speak to that, as it's very timely.
  

20                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  Yes, we actually have the
  

21   hearing in front of the Board of Supervisors tomorrow, so
  

22   by the time we get to hearing next week for the CEC,
  

23   we'll have that attached.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So we'll have additional
  

25   exhibits, then, huh?
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 1                 MR. ACKEN:  Perhaps a late-filed, sure.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Late-filed.  All right.
  

 3   There's no NEPA process for this, correct?
  

 4                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that's correct.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And so for
  

 6   the -- you say you'll have tablets for the committee
  

 7   members for the exhibits at the hearing?
  

 8                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And a limited number of
  

10   hard copies?
  

11                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  You only need two, one for
  

13   me and one for the court reporter, but if you have
  

14   extras -- the tablets work pretty good, because the
  

15   benefit is you can zoom in on those, whereas you can't
  

16   with the paper copies.  We came across that issue today
  

17   with a late-filed exhibit, the paper copy -- the print
  

18   was too fine to really make it out until you pulled it up
  

19   on the tablet and you can zoom in and read it, so --
  

20                 Any other issues we need to cover?
  

21                 MR. ACKEN:  Not from my standpoint.  I'll
  

22   ask the team if I've missed something or misstated
  

23   something, please speak up.
  

24                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  No.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I'm seeing shaking heads.
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 1                 Is there anything else we need to cover,
  

 2   Tod?
  

 3                 MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So I guess the only
  

 5   thing is get the links for remote attendance to Tod as
  

 6   soon as possible, and we'll make sure any members
  

 7   attending remotely -- and I'll double-check with the
  

 8   members who may need accommodations, to reach out to Tod
  

 9   and make sure they have -- make sure they confirm they
  

10   have them, because we don't want to be scrambling the day
  

11   of.
  

12                 MR. ACKEN:  Thank you for that.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you all very much.
  

14   You have a pleasant weekend, and we will see you next
  

15   Monday at 9:00 -- at 10:00 a.m.
  

16                 MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.
  

17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thanks.
  

18                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  Thank you.
  

19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  We are adjourned.
  

20                 (The hearing concluded at 3:16 p.m.)
  

21
  

22
  

23
  

24
  

25
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )
   COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )

 2
  

 3
             BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were

 4   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
   true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to

 5   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced

 6   to print under my direction.
  

 7             I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
   the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the

 8   outcome hereof.
  

 9             I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA 7-206

10   (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this
   3rd day of December, 2025.

11
  

12
  

13
  

14                     ___________________________
                     ROBIN L. B. OSTERODE, RPR

15                     CA CSR No. 7750
                     AZ CR No. 50695

16
  

17                       *   *   *   *   *
  

18             I CERTIFY that Glennie Reporting Services, LLC,
   has complied with the ethical obligations set forth in

19   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
  

20
  

21
  

22
  

23
            _______________________________________

24                GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC
                Registered Reporting Firm

25                Arizona RRF No. R1035
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